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Plaintiff, the United States of Anerica, acting upon
notification and authorization to the Attorney General by the
Federal Trade Conm ssion (“FTC" or “the Comm ssion”), pursuant
to Section 16(a)(1) of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act (“FTC
Act”), 15 U.S.C. 8 56(a)(1l), for its conplaint alleges:

1. Plaintiff brings this action under Sections 5(a),
5(m (1) (A, 13(b), 16(a) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C.

88 45(a), 45(m (1)(A), 53(b), 56(a) and 57b, to secure civil
penal ties, consumer redress, a permanent injunction and other
equitable relief for defendants’ violations of the FTC s Trade
Regul ation Rule entitled “Di sclosure Requirenents and
Prohi bi ti ons Concerni ng Franchi sing and Busi ness Qpportunity
Ventures” (the “Franchise Rule” or the “Rule”), 16 C F. R

Part 436, and Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U S.C. § 45(a).

JURI SDI CTI ON AND VENUE

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this
action pursuant to 28 U S.C. 88 1331, 1337(a), 1345, and 1355,
and 15 U.S.C. 88 45(m(1)(A), 53(b), 56(a) and 57b. This
action arises under 15 U . S. C. 8§ 45(a).

3. Venue in the United States District Court for the
District of Uah is proper under 28 U . S.C. 88 1391(b)-(c) and
1395(a), and 15 U.S.C. 8 53(b).
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DEFENDANTS

4. Def endant Turnkey Vending, Inc. ("Turnkey"), a Utah
corporation with its principal place of business at 347 North
300 West, Suite 201, Kaysville, Utah 84037 promptes and sells
t abl etop vendi ng quarter skill game business ventures.
Turnkey transacts or has transacted business in the District
of Ut ah.

5. Def endant M chael S. Burnett is the president of
Turnkey. |In connection with the matters all eged herein, he
resides or has transacted business in the District of Utabh.

At all tinmes material to this conplaint, acting alone or in
concert with others, he has fornul ated, directed, controlled,
or participated in the acts and practices of the corporate
def endant, including the acts and practices set forth in this
conpl ai nt.

COMVERCE

6. At all tinmes relevant to this conplaint, the
def endants have mmi ntained a substantial course of trade in
the offering for sale and sal e of tabl etop vendi ng gane
busi ness ventures, in or affecting comrerce, as “commerce” is

defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 8§ 44.



DEFENDANTS’ BUSI NESS ACTI VI Tl ES

7. The defendants offer and sell tabletop quarter vending
skill gane business ventures to prospective purchasers. The
def endants pronote their business ventures through *Small
Busi ness Opportunities” magazi ne and their website,
www. t ur nkeyvendi ng.com  Through their website, defendants make
representati ons about the earnings potential of their business
venture, and urge consuners to call defendants’ toll-free
t el ephone nunmber to | earn nore about the opportunity.

8. Consunmers who call the defendants’ toll-free tel ephone
nunber are ultimately connected to defendants, or their
enpl oyees or agents, who make representati ons about the
earni ngs potential of the business venture and the actual
earni ngs of prior purchasers. For exanple, the defendants or
t heir enpl oyees or agents have represented that each nachine
shoul d generate about $2 a day and a 48 machi ne package wil
generate approxi mately $4,320 in profits per nonth.

9. Def endants failed to provide prospective business
venture purchasers with an earni ngs clai mdocunent containing
i nformation substantiating their earnings clainms, failed to
have a reasonabl e basis for the earnings clains at the tinme

that they were made, and/or failed to disclose that materi al s,



whi ch constitute a reasonable basis for the clains, are
avai |l abl e.

10. Defendants do not provide potential purchasers with a
basi c di scl osure docunent.

THE FRANCHI SE RULE

11. The business ventures sold by the defendants are
franchi ses, as “franchise” is defined in Sections
436.2(a)(1)(ii), (a)(2), and (a)(5) of the Franchise Rule, 16
C.F.R 88 436.2(a)(21)(ii), (a)(2), and (a)(5).

12. The Franchise Rule requires a franchisor to provide
prospective franchi sees with a conplete and accurate basic
di scl osure docunent containing twenty categories of
information, including informati on about the litigation and
bankruptcy history of the franchisor and its principals, the
ternms and conditions under which the franchi se operates, and
information identifying existing franchisees. 16 C.F.R 88
436.1(a)(1) - (a)(20). The pre-sale disclosure of this
information required by the Rule enables a prospective
franchi see to contact prior purchasers and take other steps to
assess the potential risks involved in the purchase of the
franchi se.

13. The Franchise Rule additionally requires that a

franchi sor:






16. In connection with the offering of franchises, as
“franchise” is defined in Section 436.2(a) of the Franchise
Rul e, the defendants have violated Section 436.1(a) of the Rule
and Section 5(a) of the FTC Act by failing to provide
prospective franchi sees with accurate and conpl ete basic
di scl osure docunents as prescribed by the Rule.

COUNT 11

Ear ni ngs Di scl osure Viol ati ons

17. Paragraphs 1 through 14 are incorporated herein by
reference.

18. In connection with the offering of franchises, as
“franchise” is defined in Section 436.2(a) of the Franchise
Rul e, the defendants have violated Sections 436.1(b)-(c) of the
Rul e and Section 5(a) of the FTC Act by maki ng earnings clains

to prospective franchisees while, inter alia,: (1) lacking a

c TDrh cl9Ra4 sD47wrdvct 436 sDf8.5 e8franasis ¢ tia Act bvoUsis c¢39.



CONSUMER | NJURY

20. Consuners in the United States have suffered and wil
suf fer substantial nonetary |loss as a result of defendants’
vi ol ati ons of the Franchise Rule and the FTC Act. Absent
injunctive relief by this Court, defendants are likely to
continue to injure consuners and harmthe public interest.

TH S COURT' S PONER TO GRANT RELI EF

21. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b),
enpowers this Court to grant injunctive and other ancillary
relief, including consuner redress, disgorgenent and
restitution, to prevent and renmedy any violations of any
provi sion of | aw enforced by the Federal Trade Commi ssion.

22. Section 5(m (1) (A) of the FTC Act, 8§ 45(m (1) (A), as
nodi fied by Section 4 of the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation
Adj ust nent Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. 8§ 2461, as anended, and as
i npl emented by 16 C.F. R 8 1.98(d) (1997), authorizes this
Court to award civil penalties of not nore than $11, 000 for
each violation of the Franchise Rule occurring after Novenber
20, 1996. The defendants’ violations of the Rule were
commtted after that date and with the know edge required by

Section 5(m (1) (A) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §8 45(m (1) (A).



23. Section 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 8 57b, authorizes
this Court to grant such relief as the Court finds necessary to
redress injury to consuners or other persons resulting from
def endants’ violations of the Franchise Rule, including the
resci ssion and reformation of contracts, and the refund of
noney.

24. This Court, in the exercise of its equitable
jurisdiction, my award ancillary relief to renedy injury
caused by the defendants’ violations of the Franchise Rule and
the FTC Act.

PRAYER FOR RELI EF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff requests that this Court, as
aut horized by Sections 5(a), 5(m(1)(A), 13(b) and 19 of the
FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a), 45(m(1)(A), 53(b) and 57b, and
pursuant to its own equitable powers:

1. Enter judgnent against the defendants and in favor of
the plaintiff for each violation alleged in this conplaint;

2. Permanently enjoin the defendants fromviolating the
Franchi se Rule and the FTC Act;

3. Award plaintiff nonetary civil penalties from each

def endant for every violation of the Franchi se Rul e;



4. Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to
redress injury to consuners resulting fromthe defendants’

viol ations of the Franchise Rule and the FTC Act, including but
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